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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

Jonathan Berall, M.D., M.P.H.
Civ. No.
Plaintiff,
COMPLAINT
V.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Verathon Inc., Pentax of America, Inc., Karl Y= Iy £
Storz Endoscopy-America, Inc., Aircraft D rE @ E ” M] E gk
Medical, Ltd., LMA North America, nc., ! [! |
and AirTraq LLC. oL EGmn A
i t
Defendants. U.8.D.C. SOD.,'N@:#,

CASHIERS

Plaintiff Jonathan Berall, M.D., M.P.H. (“Dr. Berall™), for his Complaint against

defendants: Verathon Inc.; Pentax of America, Inc.; Karl Storz Endoscopy-America, Inc.;
Aircraft Medical, Ltd.; LMA North America, Inc.; and AirTraq, LLC (collectively,

“Defendants™), avers as follows:

NATURE OF THIS LAWSUIT
1. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of
the United States, Title 35, United States Code, including 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 and 281-285.
This Court has exclusive subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and

1338(a).

PARTIES

2, Plaintiff Dr. Berall is an individual residing at 173 Columbia Heights,

Brooklyn, NY 11201.
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3. On information and belief, defendant Verathon Inc. (*Verathon™) is a
Washington corporation having its principal place of business at 20001 North Creek
Parkway, Bothell, WA 98011.

4, On information and belief, defendant Pentax of America, Inc. (“Pentax™)
is a Delaware company having ifs principal place of business at 102 Chestnut Ridge
Road, Montvale, NJ 07645.

5. On information and belief, defendant Karl Storz Endoscopy-America, Inc.
(“Storz”) is a California corporation having its principal place of business at 2151 East
Grand Avenue, El Segundo, CA 90245.

6. On information and belief, defendant Aircraft Medical, Ltd. (“Aircraft”) is
a United Kingdom corporation having its principal place of business at 9-10 St. Andrews
Square, Edinburgh, EH2 2AF, United Kingdom.

7. On information and belief, defendant LMA North America, Inc. (“LMA™)
is a Nevada corporation having its principal place of business at 4660 La Jolla Village
Drive, Suite 900, San Diego, CA 92122,

8. On information and belief, defendant AirTraq LLC (*“AirTrag”) has its
principal place of business at 3460 Pointe Creek Ct., #102, Bonita Springs, FL 34134-

2015.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9. This Court has personal jurisdiction over each of the Defendants.
10.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b), 1391(c),

and 1400.
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FACTS

11.  Dr. Berall is the owner of all right, title and interest in United States Patent
No. 5,827,178 (“the 178 Patent™), entitled “Laryngoscope for Use in Trachea
Intubation,” issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office on October 27,
1998, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A.

12. Verathon markets, produces, distributes, sells, and/or offers to sell in the
United States video laryngoscopes, including, for example, the Glidescope video
laryngoscope.

13. Pentax markets, produces, distributes, sells, and/or offers to sell in the
United States and/or imperts into the United States and/or imports into the United States
video laryngoscopes, including, for example, the AWS video laryngoscope.

14, Storz markets, produces, distributes, sells, and/or offers to sell in the
United States and/or imports into the United States video laryngoscopes, including, for
example, the C-Mac video laryngoscope.

15. Aircraft markets, produces, distributes, sells, and/or offers to sell in the
United States and/or imports into the United States video laryngoscopes, including, for
example, the McGrath Series 5 video laryngoscope.

16. On information and belief, LMA is the exclusive United States distributor
for Aircraft’s video laryngoscopes, including, for example, the McGrath Series 5 video
laryngoscope. On information and belief, LMA markets, distributes, sells, and/or offers
to sell in the United States and/or imports Aircraft video laryngoscopes, including, for

example, the McGrath Series 5 video laryngoscope.
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17.  Oninformation and belief, AirTraq is the exclusive United States
distributor of video laryngoscopes, including, for example, the AirTraq video

laryngoscope.

COUNT 1
(Infringement of the ‘178 Patent by Verathon)

18. Vertahon makes, uses, offers to sell, and/or sells within the United States,
and/or actively induces others to make, use, offer to sell, and/or sell within the United
States, products that practice the inventions of the ‘178 Patent, including, for example,
the Glidescope video laryngoscope.

19.  Verathon has infringed and continues to infringe the ‘178 Patent directly
or through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in violation of 35 U.S.C. §
271.

20.  Verathon’s infringement has occurred with knowledge of the ‘178 patent
and has been willful.

21,  Verathon’s acts of infringement have caused damage to Dr. Berall, and Dr.
Berall is entitled to recover from Verathon the damages sustained by Dr. Berall as a result
of Verathon’s wrongful acts. Verathon’s acts of infringement will continue to damage
Dr. Berall causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless

enjoined by the Court.

COUNT II
(Infringement of the ‘178 Patent by Pentax)

22. Pentax makes, uses, offers to sell, imports and/or sells within the United

States, and/or actively induces others to make, use, offer to sell, and/or sell within the
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United States, products that practice the inventions of the ‘178 Patent, including, for
example, the AWS video laryngoscope.

23.  Pentax has infringed and continues to infringe the ‘178 Patent directly or
through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

24.  Pentax’s infringement has occurred with knowledge of the 178 patent and
has been willful.

25.  Pentax’s acts of infringement have caused damage to Dr. Berall, and Dr.
Berall is entitled to recover from Pentax the damages sustained by Dr. Berall as a result
of Pentax’s wrongful acts. Pentax’s acts of infringement will continue to damage Dr.
Berall causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless

enjoined by the Court.

COUNT I
(Infringement of the ‘178 Patent by Storz)

26. Storz makes, uses, offers to sell, imports and/or sells within the United
States, and/or actively induces others to make, use, offer to sell, import, and/or sell within
the United States, products that practice the inventions of the ‘178 Patent, including, for
example, the C-Mac video laryngoscope.

27.  Storz has infringed and continues to infringe the ‘178 Patent directly or
through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

28.  Storz’s infringement has occurred with knowledge of the ‘178 patent and
has been willful.

29.  Storz’s acts of infringement have caused damage to Dr. Berall, and Dr.

Berall is entitled to recover from Storz the damages sustained by Dr. Berall as a result of
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Storz’s wrongful acts. Storz’s acts of infringement will continue to damage Dr. Berall
causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless enjoined

by the Court.

COUNT IV
(Infringement of the ‘178 Patent by Aircraft)

30. Aircraft makes, uses, offers to sell, imports and/or sells within the United
States, and/or actively induces others to make, use, offer to sell, import, and/or sell within
the United States, products that practice the inventions of the ‘178 Patent, including, for
example, the McGrath Series 5 video laryngoscope.

31.  Oninformation and belief, Aircraft has infringed and continues to infringe
the ‘178 Patent directly or through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

32, Aircraft’s infringement has occurred with knowledge of the ‘178 patent
and has been willful.

33.  Aircraft’s acts of infringement have caused damage to Dr. Berall, and Dr.
Berall is entitled to recover from Aircraft the damages sustained by Dr. Berall as a result
of Aircraft’s wrongful acts. Aircraft’s acts of infringement will continue to damage Dr.
Berall causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless

enjoined by the Court.

COUNT V
(Infringement of the ‘178 Patent by LMA)

34. On information and belief LMA, as exclusive United States distributor for

Aircraft of video laryngoscopes, uses, offers to sell, imports, and/or sells within the
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United States, and/or actively induces others to make, use, offer to sell, import, and/or
sell within the United States, products that practice the inventions of the ‘178 Patent,
including, for example, the McGrath Series 5 video laryngoscope.

35.  Oninformation and belief, LMA has infringed and continues to infringe
the ‘178 Patent directly or through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in
violation of 35 U.8.C. § 271.

36.  LMA’s acts of infringement have caused damage to Dr. Berall, and Dr.
Berall is entitled to recover from LMA the damages sustained by Dr. Berall as a result of
Verathon’s wrongful acts. LMA’s acts of infringement will continue to damage Dr.
Berall causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless

enjoined by the Court.

COUNT V1
{(Infringement of the ‘178 Patent by Airfraq)

37.  AirTraq makes, uses, offers to sell, imports, and/or sells within the United
States, and/or actively induces others to make, use, offer to sell, import, and/or sell within
the United States, products that practice the inventions of the ‘178 Patent, including, for
example, the AirTraq video laryngoscope.

38.  AirTraq has infringed and continues to infringe the ‘178 Patent directly or
through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

39.  Oninformation and belief, AirTraq’s infringement has occurred with
knowledge of the ‘178 patent and has been willful.

40.  AirTraq’s acts of infringement have caused damage to Dr. Berall, and Dr.

Berall is entitled to recover from AirTraq the damages sustained by Dr. Berall as a result
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of AirTraq’s wrongful acts. AirTraq’s acts of infringement will continue to damage Dr.

Berall causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless

enjoined by the Court.

41.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Pursuant to Rule 38, Fed. R. Civ. P., Dr. Berall demands a trial by jury on

all issues set forth herein that are properly triable to a jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Dr. Berall respectfully requests that the Court, to grant

the following relief and to enter judgment in favor of Berall as follows:

A.

A judgment that each of Defendants have directly infringed, contributorily
infringed and/or induced the infringement of the ‘178 Patent;

An injunction permanently restraining and enjoining each of Defendants
(and any of Defendants’ officers, directors, employees, agents, servants,
successors, assigns, and any and all persons in privity or in concert with
Defendants, or any of them, directly or indirectly) from infringing the ‘178
Patent in any manner;

Awarding Dr. Berall damages adequate to compensate for injuries
sustained as a result of Defendants’ infringement of the ‘178 Patent, but in
no event less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest thereon;

A judgment that at least Defendants Pentax, Storz, Verathon, AirTraq and

Aircraft have willfully infringed the ‘178 patent and awarding treble
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damages;

E. A judgment that this case is exceptional and an award of attorney fees and

costs to Berall pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285; and

F. Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: July 29, 2010

Respectfully syl 4 itted,

| TZER LLP

Wi

Dav:gfl/-x Loewenstem (DL*505
Douglas Gilbert (DG - 3726)
Robert Greenfeld (RG - 1081)
DavidL@pczlaw.com
DouglasG{@pczlaw.com
RobertG@pczlaw.com

1500 Broadway, 12" Floor
New York, NY 10036

Tel: (646)878-0800

Fax: (646)878-0801

Attorneys for Plaintiff Jonathan Berall M.D.,
M.P.H.
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[57] ABSTRACT

A laryngoscope, for use in intubating & patient’s trachea,
especially In emergency situations. The laryngoscope has a
camera mounted in the vicinity of a distal end of its blade to
observe the patient’s trachea opening and other oral internal
structures in a visual field. The camera is conpected, typi-
cally via a fiberoptic cable, to a lightweight portable tele-
vision screcn, preferably mounted on the laryngoscope
handle, for displaying the visual field to the a Professional
Intubator 50 as to enable him or her to observe continuously
the trachea opening and other oral intemal structures as he
or she manipulates the intubating instrument, The laryngo-
scope with the camera and screen thereon preferably is held
in one of the Professional Intubator’s bands fo lift and move
aside the patient’s tongue steadily and consiantly. The other
hand of the Professional Intubator then is free (o manipulate
the intubating Imstrument. Mounting the camera and the
screen on the larynposcope, which remains quite steady,
provides the Professional Intubator with a continuous steady
display of the trachea opening and other oral internal struc-
tures on the screen while the infubator also sees directly
down the patient’s mouth.

16 Claims, 4 Drawing Sheets
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FIG. 4
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1

LARYNGOSCOPE FOR USE IN TRACHEA
INTUBATION

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Field of Invention

This invention relates generally to fiberoptic scopes and
more particelarly to a laryngoscope having such a scope
with an assoclated lightweight portable screen. Said laryn-
goscope Is particuiarty useful in a procedure for intubating
a patient’s trachea, especially in emergency situations.

2. Relevant Prior Art

A fiberoptic intubating instrument having thereon a scope
with a camera and an associated lightweight portable screen
was disclosed by Dr. Gordon George in U.S. Pat. No.
5,363,838 which issued on Nov. 15, 1994. Dr. George had
also authored U.S. Pat. No. 4,742,819 which had issued on
May 10, 1988 wherein he had likewise disclosed a prior
version of an intubating instrument having thercon a scope
with a camera and a screen associated therewith.

U.S. Pat. No. 4,086,919 to Bullard disclosed a laryngo-
scope having a single eyepiece aftached to the laryngoscope
blade. The eyepiece is illuminated by a fiberoptic system. If
the person performing ar intubation procedure, such as a
physician, nurse, paramedic, or an emergency medical tech-
nician {each bereinafter sometimes referred to as a “Profes-
sional Intubator™) tooks through the Buliard scope and has
to remove his eyes from the eyepiece to make an external
assesstnent of the airway of the patient, a critical lag in time
occurs before the Professional Intubator can re-focus on the
internal images seen through the eyepiece. The critical lapse
of time caused by the process of focusing and refocusing can
affect timely placement of the endotracheal tube and may
even cause the Professional Intubator to misinterpret certain
landmarks, hindering correct placement of the endotracheal
tube. Most importantly, movement of the Professional Intu-
bator’s body and head, down to and away from the eyepiece,
can lead to erroncous placement of the endotrackeal tube in
a structure other than the patient’s airway. Such erroneous
placement can result in death or serious brain damage to the
patient, so importance of correct endotracheal tube place-
menl cannot be overemphasized.

IMSCUSSION OF FROCEDURE

In performing an intubating procedure, the Professional
Intubator holds a laryngoscope in one hand for Lifting the
patient’s tongue to one side to expose the patient’s trachea
opening and the Professional Intubator simultanecusly oper-
ales ap intubating instrument in his or her other hand for
inserting a tube into the patient’s trachea. In performing the
procedure the Professional Intubator must move and
magipulate the intubating instrument which necessarily
moves and disturbs a scope or camera if it were mounted
thereon. Thus the movement would disturb and disrupt
display of the patieat’s oral internal structures that would
appear on the screen of Dr. George. But, in contrast, the
Professional Intubator’s hand holding the laryngoscope to
keep the patient’s tongue out of the intubator’s line of sight,
stays steady and constant. So Applicant here teaches to
mount the scope or camera in the vicinity of the distal end
of the blade of the laryagoscope, instead of on the intubating
instrument, whereby display of the patienl’s oral infernal
structures remains quite sieady while the Professional Intu-
bator’s other hand is free fo move and manipulate the
infubating ibsirument in inserting the fube it inte the
patient’s frachea.

It is necessary frequently in medical procedures to insert
an tube into the trackea of a patient for ventilation, oxygen-
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ation and/or airway protection. Infubation is offen difficult
and can give rise to complications. Itis frequently performed
in critical and life-threatening situations on severely com-
promised paticnts in awkward emergency sites. Even a short
period of oxygen deprivation can result in death or severe
brain damage of the patient. A common ingredient for faifure
when attempting intubation is that when the Professional
Intubator’s view of the patient’s tracheal opening becomes
obstructed. That situation of obstructed view is called blind
intubation. The most common cause of blind intubation is
that the tongue slips over the laryngoscope blade and
obstructs the Professional Infubator’s view of the tracheal
opening. The tongue being large, floppy, moist and slippery,
easily does slip over the laryngoscope blade and down into
the lire of vision between the Professional Intubator and the
tracheal opening he or she is tryiog to view. Additionally,
sometimes neck type and abmormalities of the patient’s
pharynx, such as abscesses, cancers and even congenital
abnormalities can resuit in an inability fo see directly the
tracheal opening, thus resulting in failure of intubation,

In many patients establishment of the airway may be a
formidable task due to morphologic anomalies such as a
large tongue, excessive pharyngeal or laryngeal soft tissue or
tracheal displacement, as well as physiologic events such as
laryngospasm, regurgitation of gasiric materials, blood or
foreign bodies. The morphologic anomalies already men-
tioned make it difficult to visualize the posterior pharyngeal
area and larynx. The present invention helps minimize risks
brought on by such anomalies.

In terms of neck type, short necks cannot extend fully
whereby the Professional Intubator’s direct lne of vision
(180" angle) is not achieved between the Professional Intu-
bator’s eye and the tracheal opening and there is blind
ictubation. Blind intubation, unfortunately is rarely success-
ful.

The laryngoscope blade is casily passed, conventionaily
using the Professional Intubator’s left hand, behind the base
of the tongue and into the pharynx. The instrument for
inserting the endotracheal tube is also passed, convention-
ally using the Professional Intubator’s right hand, behind the
base of the tongue and into the pharynx. The laryngoscope
with its blade (once positioned) is held, by the Professional
Intubator’s left hand, in a steady and firm minimally chang-
ing position. The instrument for inserting the endotracheal
tube is moved In varying positions by the Professional
Intubator’s right hand to enter the tracheal opening. The
laryngoscope according to the present Invention is a modi-
fication of current state of the art laryngoscopes such that a
scope or camera is mounted on its distal end, preferably at
or in the vicinity of the far tip of the laryngoscope blade,
preferably spaced slightly rearwardly therefrom for reasons
which will appear more fully herein. The cameza is opera-
tively copaccted to a screen arvanged for viewing by the
Professional Intubator. The screen can be attached
(preferably pivotally) fo the handle of the laryngoscope
above the blade, so that the Professional Intubator’s direct
view iato the mouth and simultaneous view of the screen can
be achieved with no head movement by the Professional
Intubator and minimal change in his or her line of vision—
that is to say, eye movement. When the laryngoscope is
positioned it is held in a substactially stable condition so that
the scope or camera Is steady and the screen displays a stable
picture whereby insertion of the intubating instrument into
the patient’s trachea, and the entire endotrackeal intubating
procedure are greatly facilitated.

Once the laryngoscope blade, scope or camera and screen
are steadied, the endotracheal tabe is passed easily and
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conveniently into the posterior pharysx. As it passes the
cameras eve the endotracheal tube appears on the sereen so
then the Professional Intubator has the tube and the tracheal
opening both ia simultancous view on the screen which
preferably is positioned very close o his or her direct line of
sight. The Professional Intubator then has the endotracheal
tube distal end and the fracheal opening on the screen and
bringing the two togetber becomes a simplified and rela-
tively relaxed procedure. Further the Professiopal Intubator
can also look right at the patient’s teacheal opening.
Fiberoptic scopes have been used in association with
screens, video systems, tapes and discs in other arcas of
medicine as well. Scopes used for arthroscopy with screens
set on 2 monitor off fo ope side of an operating room table
are just ope example. Another example is use of a fiberoptic
scope in performance of laparoscopic cholecystectomy. The
screen, and with & the moritoring images is removed from
the direction of the operation. To use such fiberoptic scopes
and devices for intubation of a trachea, especially in patients
who present airways that are complicated, is not an optimal

answer for emergency intubation. If such a scope is mounted

on the instrument for inserting the endotracheal tube to view
the patient’s airway structures, as the distal end of the
instrument and endotracheal tube go out of sight the Pro-
fessional Intubator has 10 turn his or her head and/or body in
a significant manner to view the associated screen. If mouth
and throat structures are seen that are not easily identifiable,
the Professional Intubator then has to tumn his or her head
and/or body back to the direct viewing of the airway to see
just where the endotracheal tube is placed, and make an
adjustment of the endotracheal tube in the airway in relation
to anatomic structures that are present. Then as the endot-
racheal tube goss out of sight again, the Professional Infu-
bator has to turn his or her head and body off to the side to
again look at the screen. Because according to prior art
arrangements, a Professional Intubator cannot simulta-
neously view the airway directly and indirectly through the
screen, confusion, lack of orientation of the endotracheal
tube and its proper position in the airway can result, poten-
Hally leading to failwre in an intubating process.

The inventior set forth in Dr. George’s U.S. Pat. No.
5,363,838 entitled “Fiberoptic Intubating Scope with Cam-
era and Lightweight Portable Screen and Method of Using
Same” comes close to achieving optimum conditions to
assuring quick, accurate and easy placement of the endot-
racheal tube ir a patient’s trachea. The present invention
goes further by enabling the Professional Intubator simul-
taneously to see the patient’s airway directly and indirectly
as a steady picture on screen. The present invention likewise
enables the Professional Intubator to move his or her eyes
only minimally during the intubating procedure so that he or
she does not have to tarn his or her head or body to visualize
indirectly the airway, as would be required with 2 screen that
were set off to the side and not close to the direct Ene of
vision of the task at hand,

Normally a Professional Intubator is either right-handed
or left-handed, which is to say he or she has a dominant hand
and a less-dominant hand. Normally the Professional Intu-
bator would be inclired to use his or her less-dominant hand
to hold the laryngoscope, because the [ess-dominant hand is
sufficient for lifting and moving fo one side the patient’s
tongue steadily and constantly during the intubation proce-
dure. Traditionally Professional Intubators have been trained
to hold a laryngoscope in his or ber left hand, but that
tradition is not carved in stone. Because the less-dominant
hand and the blade of the laryngoscope are easily held
steady, the field of view which the scope or camera observes
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likewise is quite steady. The dominant hand of the Profes-
sioral Iolubator, with superior agility, then is available to
manipuiate the intubating instrument without bouncing dis-
turbing or disrupling the display on the screen.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

A primary object of the present invenlior is to provide a
laryngoscope for use with an intebating instrument in a
procedure for infubating a frachea of a patient, especially a
patient whose pharyax, larynx and trachea are not easily
visualized,

A further object is to provide such a laryngoscope which
is user-friendly to the Professional Intubator.

A further object is to provide a laryngoscope with a scope
or camera and display screen which do not require the
Professional Intubator to turn his or her head away from
direct visualization of the operating field during the intuba-
tion: procedure.

A further object of the invention is to provide such a
laryngoscope which can be set up quickly and casily.

A further cbject of this invention is fo provide such a
laryngoscope which is self-contained, lightweight and por-
table.

A further object of the fnvention is to provide such 2
laryngoscope which allows the Professional Intubator to see
more superficial structures of the oral pharyax by direct
vision and simuliancously to see the deeper structures of the
larynx and trachea indirectly through the screen arrangeable
close to his or her direct line of sight into the operating field.

A further object of the invention is $0 enable the Profes-
sioral Intubator to lift and move aside the patient’s tongue
and position the camera steadily and constanily during the
intubation procedure with his or her less-dominant hand,
thereby allowing the Professional Intubator to manipulate
the incubaling instrumert wilh his or her dominant hand
without jostiing the scope or camera.

These and other objects and advantages will be apparent
to those skitled in the art in light of the following disclosure,
claims and accompanying drawings.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

Throughout the drawings the same reference characters
indicate the same or similar parts.

FIG. 1 is an illustration of the pafient laying flat on a
suitable platform with his or ber neck drawn back and the
Professioral Intubator positioned behind the patient’s head.
The Professional Intubator may be a physician, nurse, para-
medic or an emergency medical technician. The Professional
Intubator is using his or her Ieft hand to insert the blade of
the Iaryngoscope into the patient’s mouth while drawing the
patient’s neck back.

FIG. 2 ilustrates the laryngoscope in its {unctioning
position, to offer the Professional Intubator 2 direct line of
vision to the patient’s trachea opening and other oral internal
structures near thereto.

FIG. 3 illustrates insertion of the intubating instrument
info the trachea of the patient.

FIG. 4 is a circuit showing the operative relationships of
the scope or camera means, the power supply means and the
display means.

DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED EMBODIMENT

Referring to FIG. 1 patient 11 is arranged on a platform
(not shown) with 2 Professional fotubator 12 taking a
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position behind the patient’s bead 13 so that the Professional
Intubator can have a direct line of sight 14 directly down the
patient’s throat 15. A neck 16 of the patient 11 js drawn
rearwardly to enable the Professional Intubator 12 fo see
more clearly down the patient’s throat. With his or her left
hand the Professional Intubator 12 inserts a blade 17 of a
laryngoscope 18 into the patient’s mouth 19 and gently
draws and rotates the handle 21 of the laryngoscope 18
toward the Professional Intubator 12 and lifts the patient’s
tongue 22 moving it to one side whereby the Professional
Intubator 12 now is afferded a direct line of sight through the
patient’s mouth down the patient’s throat 15 to his or her
pharyox and the area of the patient’s trachea opening 23.

Referring to FIG. 2, the laryngoscope 18 includes the
handle 21 with the blade 17. The blade 17 has a proximal
end 24 and a distal end 25. A scope or camera 26 is mounted
on the blade 17 in the vicinity of the distal end 25 for
observing a visual field 27 which includes mouth and throat
internal structures associated with the trachea opening 23.
The camera 26 could be at the tip 28 of the blade 17, but that
would be disadvantageous if the tip 17 were to set favolved
in one soft tissue obstruction or anolher. Under ideal cir-
cumstances a highly skilled Professional Intubator 12 can
distinguish and manipulate varicus structures, such as the
patient’s epiglottis. In emergency circumstances, taking into
account varous levels of skill of Professional Intubators, the
crucial objective is to afford reliable placement of the
intubating iostrement into the trachea opening 23, rather
than have it pass into the patient’s csophagus 31. So the
scope or camera 26 is located sirategically best o see the
trachea opening 23 whereby the intubating instrument can
be inserted reliably therein.

The camera 26 (shown best in FIG. 4) is powered by 2
battery 32 preferably in the handle 21 and a suitable on-off
switch 33 is provided. The display means is shown as a
television screen 34 mounted on the handle 21 and may be
arranged to swivel as indicated in FIGS. 2 and 3. It is
desirable 1o position the screen 34 as close to the Profes-
siomal Intubator’s 12 line of sight 14 as possible. The battery
32 can be recharged in the usnal way. Alternately the
laryngoscope 18 could be powered via a hard wire or plug-in
connection to another power source.

The laryagoscope 18 preferably is made of lightweight
hard plastic and the blade 17 is detachable for sterilization.
Communication of the scope or camera 26 with the screen
34 is conveniently provided through a fiber optic tube 35 via
optic fibers as is well-known in the art. It is also envisioned
that the camera means 26 could comprise a compuler chip
camera or similar camera means now in development,

By positioning the display screen 34 on the handie 21 of
the laryngoscope 18 and enabling it to swivel, as best seen
in FIG. 3, the intubator 12 can simultaneously view the area
of the trachca opening 23 directly and on the screen 34
without substantial motion of the Professional Intubator’s 12
eye 14. The Professional Intubator’s 12 right hand 36 is free
o move and manipulate the intubating instrument 29 fo
guide it into the patient’s trachea 23, rather thar the patient’s
esophagns 31. The scope or camera 26 remains steady on the
relatively stationary blade 17 of the laryngoscope 18 and is
beld firmly by 1he Professional Intubator’s 12 left hand 37,
so the visual field 27 seen by the camera 26 doss not bounce
around with necessary movement of the intubating fnstru-
ment 29. The display on the screen 34 clearly depicts the
trachea opening 23 and related structures and the Profes-
sional Intubator 12 sees the infubating instrument 29 passing
into the trachea opening 23 beth directly with his or her
straight fine of sight and also on the display screen 34
positioned quite close thereto,
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It will be understood by those skifled in the art that
varicus deviations may be made in the shown preferred
embodiment without departing fromz a main therae of inven-
tion set forth in claims which foilow.

1 claim:

1. A laryngoscope comprising:

a handle and a blade, with the blade having a proximal end
connected to the handle and a distal end projecting
lateraily therefrom,;

camera means mounted on the biade in the vicinity of the
distal end for observing a visual field; and

display means operatively connected to said camera
means for displaying the visual ficld at a preselected
location.

2, The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 1, further includ-

ing Hghting means for illuminating the visual field.

3. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 2, further includ-
ing power supply means for powering said camera means
and said display means.

4. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 3, wherein said
power supply means are mounted in the handle.

5. The laryngoscope as claimed in cleim I, wherein said
display means include a screen mounted on the handle and
on which is displayed the visual field observed by the
camera means.

6. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 5, wherein the
camera means are a videocamera,

7. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 8, wherein said
display meaps organized to be lightweight.

8. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 1, wherein said
camera means are spaced from the distal end of the blade,
fiberoptic means providing said operative connection
between the camera means and the display means,

9. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 8, wherein said
fiberoptic means include a plurality of optic fibers.

10. The Jaryngoscope as claimed in claim 8, wherein said
fiberoptic means include a fiberoptic tube.

11. The taryngoscope as claimed in claim 5, whercin said
camera means comprise a computer chip camera.

12, The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 11, wherein said
display means are connecied electrically o said computer
chip camera.

13. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 1, characterized
further in that it is made of lightweight strong plastic and is
organized to be portable and the power supply means
comprises a battery, the display means mounted on the
handle adjacent to a linc of sight of an intbator directly
viewing the visual field jtself.

14. The laryngoscope as claimed in claim 13, wherein the
display means are positionable to allow the Professional
Intubator simultanecus viewing of the visual field directly
and the visual field indirectly through the display means.

15. A taryngoscope for use with an intbating instrument
i a procedure for intubating a trachea of a patient, the
laryagoscope comprising:

a handle for a Professional Intubator to grasp in a flest
hand, a blade with a proximal end conpected to the
handle and a distal end extending laterally therefrom
for insertion into a patient’s mouth during the proce-
dure to clevate and move o one side the patient’s
tongue steadily and constantly,

camera means mouated on the blade in the vicinity of the
distal end of the blade for observing a visual field that
includes the patient’s trachea opening and other oral
internal structures;

the camera means conmected operatively 0 a portable
lightweight display means arranged for the Profes-
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sional Intubator to see the field of view on the display
means, whereby the Professioral Intubator’s second
hand is available to manipulate the intubating instru-
ment without disturbing the camera means.

16. A method of intubating a trachea of a patient by an

Professional Intubator using an intubating instrument and a

laryngoscope, the method comprising steps as follows:

providing the laryngoscope with a bandle and a blade, the
blade having a proximal end connected (o the handle
and a distal end projecting Iaterally therefrom;

inserting the blade into the patient’s mouth while grasping
the laryngoscope by the handle using a first hand of the
Professional Intubator for steadily and constantly 1ift-
ing and move to one side the paticnt’s tongue and
exposing the patient’s trachea opening and other oral
mternal structures to view;

providing illuminating means for illuminating the trachea
opening and other oral internal structures;

§
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providing camera means mounted on the blade in the
vicinity of the distal end of the blade so that it observes
a field of view that includes the patient’s trachea
opening ard other oral intermal structures;

having the camera means operatively connected to display
means for viewing the field of view thereon;

inserting the intubating instrument into the mouth of a
patient using a second hand of the Professional Intu-
bator and manipulating the intubating instrument for
insertion of a tube into the patient’s trachea opening;

positioning the dispiay means on the handle so that while
the Professional Intubator inserls and manipulates the
intubating instrument into the patient’s trachea the
Professional Intubator observes the trachea opening
and other oral infernal structures of the patient on the
display means unaffected by the manipulating of the
intubating instrument.

I S
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